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FOREWARD .

This first week of Septensber 2000 is a very important week in the history of the parish of
Killeeshil. We have sought forgivenass from Almighty God und each other. We have sat
down together in a celcbration meal and now, today. we celebrate the Mass in our Altar
Glen in thanksgiving and in remembrance of the past.

Today we have vivid memories of the afternoon In 1988 when our muck loved Cardinal
O Fiich revelled in the atmosphere of this Holy Ground. We rememker his stiring
homily, his ofi-repeated slogan of the day. Tt is the Mass that matters.” | have no doubt
that his message that day has fived in the memory ofall who were present and is perhiaps
his mast important legacy to the people of the parish.

As we meet in thanksgiving we remember with profound gratitude the heroic sacrilices
that were made to preserve and hand an the fiith that we share today. Despite tlie
centurics of persecution ard the most determined efforts to stamp out the faith; despite
the Famine - perhaps the preatesst peace-time dissster in known history - and it's
dreadful aftermath, they remained faithfisl

The word “remember” is one of the most significant words in the English language. 1fwe
have no memory of what happened in the past. then we have no roots. If'we have no
raats, we have no relevance as  separate people. Anotber immensely significant word is
“hope™, If we have no hope for the future, we are cut off from what the future holds
which would be the ultimate disaster.

Taday. therefore, we acknowledge form:

what happened in the past and we move on to

face the future. The last SU years have been a lraumatic time for us all. We have maved
out of a hundred years of poverty flowing from the Famine. After nearly 40 years of

Wo are also trying to recover our equilibrium after the shameful revelations of thepast
decade and much media hostility

ow we must put behind us the uncertainties, the feelings of inferiority and the hatred
engendered by 50 many acts of enielty and revenge, We are entering & period of
burgeoning prosperity and confidence. We must make sure that & mature Christian faith
anid devotion 1o the Mass keep pace with the rest. We are. when all is said and done.
Eucharistic people.

1 am deeply grateful to Brendan Holland for preparing this commemorative booklet, I'm
sure it will be treasured in every household in the parish. 1 express sineere thanks also to
the many people who have worked together in so many ways to make this week a week 10
remember.

I pray God's blessing on you all

AMES CROWLEY P.P,




ACKINDUFF ALTAR GLEN

Introduction

“Where av. it is notoriously knews, that the late rebellions in this Kingdom have been contrived,
promoied and carvied vn by Pupish Archbishops, Rishops, Jesuits, and ather ccclesiastical
persons af the Romish clergy. And for as much as the peace and public safety of this Kingdom iy
in dlamger s Which said Romish clergy do. not endeavour to withdraw his
Majesty’s Subjects from rhwuben‘zence bt do daily stir up, and move sedition and rebeliion o
the grear hazard of the ruin and desolation of this Kingdom, ... ;

S0 began one of the provisions of new legislation in 1704 that has come to be known as the Penal
Laws which were designed 10 exile and outlaw all Roman Catholic Clergy. from the humble
Curate 10 the Archibishop or Bishop of every diacese. From the 1620 a series of Laws had been
introduced so that Catholies could not own property, bear arms, educate their children or even
own a horse over £3,00 in value.

Tt was in this climate that even the act of attending Mass became an offence - thus the need for
the calebration of the Holy Sacrament in places sueh as the glen of Achadh Cinn Dubh. Bishop.
Hugh McMahan of Clagher, later Archbishop of Armegh, recorded, “Over the countryside
people might be seen signaliing to cach other on their fingers the hour that Mass was o begin in
arder that people miight be able ro kieel dovn and follow mentaily the Mass being celebrated at
a distance",

The Early Church in Killeeshil

Open alr worship was a common feature in Ulster, and, particularly in Tyrone where the defeated
O.Neills fled to exile in 1607, Prior to the defeat of O™Neill the Catholic Church in rural Treland
was barely recognisable from that which has existed in this and the last century, Although there
was a hierarchy of Bishops and Parish Priests their remit and influence lessened the further one
travelled from Droghedaand Dublin. There was even apen hostility between the O°Neills and the
Archbishop of Armagh because under the old Celtic system the Franciscan and Dominician
religious orders had more influence over those who wielded power - the Clan Chieffians. Acts
of worship were centered mainly around Friaries and, in some cases they also provided education
for the young children.



1n rural areas such as Killeeshil and Ackinduff the locals would have worshipped in.a wooden
framed, mud walled church an the site of what is now St. Paul’s Church of Treland church or in
the Franciscan Friaries in either Terenew or Donaghmore. Indeed the parish of Killeeshill is
mentioned in Irish Church records as Fir Back as the early 1300°s when it is referred to as
*Ekellisill’ in the Calendar of Docummis, Ireland under the heading. *Ecclesiastical Taxation of
Ireland 1302 - 6. It is also prabable that they would have buried the dead in Killeeshil. In many
ways the Catholic Church at that time had develoged differently and distinctly from the Church in
England or mainland Europe, Tt was comman for priests to bave partners and children who. in
some cases ven succeeded their father into the priesthood. Worship was mixed with superstition
and old Celtic rites where visits to Holy Wells and places of healing were common. This was

1ot encouraged by the Archbishop of the diocese who, in pre-reformation times, was based in
Drogheda and not Armagh. There was little that the Archbishap could have done as his authority
was ither ignored or even challenged by the frary priests who gave their primary allegiance, not
1o Rome but to their local Chisfiain - in our case the O.Nefll. The fact that many of the Bishops
i Armagh were of 6ld English families did not help-

The Plantation and its Afrermath

Theuse of the Altar Glen as & place of worship would only hiave commenced after the Flight of
the Earls in 1607, 1t is diffieult to be exact about when the glen was first used as a place of
worship 4s the general parish area of Killeeshil was very thinly populated by today’s standards.
For example, there were anly three families in the townland of Ackinduff in 1607 when the land
‘Became the property of an English soldier named Samuel Hill. He received the fand and many
ather townlands in the district as payment for his services 1a the Crown. [n effect, Bie was

the first landlord of Ackindufl

The influence of the Religious Orders and Friaries still remained after Q™Neill's defeat and they
were still in existence for a further 150 - 200 years akthough their power and influence waned at
the expense of the mainstream church. By the 1620° the first effects of the Penal Laws began to
be felt but the freedom to practice the Cathalic faith varied greatly. Tn 1613 the internuncio to
Flanders, now in Beigium, sent Rame a very upbeat report on the state of religion in Ireland. He
claimed that the Penal Laws were not being enforced and nearly all the population were openly
profissing their religion. By 1629 the then politicial powers rurnad theic attention at one point to
Lough Derg and atterapred to close it a5 a place of pilgrimage. They ondered if to be demalished
and ~heive all the other superstitious statues and materials cast into the lowgh”. A new law was
introduced penalising the hearing of Mass to the tune of 200 crowns for a first offence and further
attendance risked lfe in prisonment, At this time Plantation caused a movement of papulation
away from lowland areas to more hilly barren uplands such as Ackinduff. Clonavaddy and
Auehiagar began and we can therefore assume that it wes around this time, or perhaps a little
Iater that the Altar Glen was to become a permanent place of worship.

The Cathelic Church had a short lived revival in its fortunes as. in the 1640°s, England became
comvlsed in its own civil war. ‘The immediate descendants of the dispassessed lrish Chieflains
saw their opporturity and rehelled in 1641. Meny gruesoms atrocities were carried out on the




newly arrived setilers from Scotland and England. The anger of the dispossessed Irish was
exemplified in an incident that took place in nearby Ballydonnelly “Castlecaulfield”. Sir Toby
Caulield invited Phelim O"Neill to dinner. At that time he resided in the castle at Benburb having,
until then, aecepted the new rules of the vietorious English. On meeting Sir Toby Caulfield at the
door of his home in Castlecaulfield he took him prisoner to Benburb where he was killed and so
began the rebellion of 1641,

Cromwell

Revival of the churches fortunes cnded with the arrival of Sir Oliver Cromwell, the victor of the
English Civil War. He was of puritan siock and was vehemently opposed ta the influence of the
Roman Catholic Chureh in Ireland and he sét about his task of wiping it out with relish and with
religious zeal. The 1650°s were a dark period in the history of the Trish Catholic Church and, 1o
doubt, the increasing peasant population in Ackinduff and the area generally worshipped in great
fisar and trepidation.

The location of the glen was very sulizble for ifs purposé! an unusually steep sided small valley
surrounded on three sides by higher ground. Lookouts would probably hwve been posted on what
s now known as Kelly's hill on the top of AckindulT and other surrounding hills to wam of the
approach of solliers and milti. 1t s Ekely that the glen would have been heavily wooded and
would have provided cover for the priest and s flock in the event of being discovered.

s the vears rolled by in the 1600's the area became more heavily populated and these who would
Heaves attended Mass in the glen would have come from as far away as Alizglushan to the North.
Edenfore and Ballyreagh to the West, Drumfisd and Mullyroddan to the South and from
Reaskmare and Drumnafern o the Esst.

The 1660°s brought the arrival of Ofiver Plunkett as Archbishop of Armagh. He was determized
+hat the influence of the hierarchy would be extended to the whole of the diocese and he
seorganised parish boundaries and appointed Parish Pricsts. The famous Fr. Bryan MeGurk spent
{he first 12 years of his priesthoed in Aghaloo and Killeeshil as well as Carrickmore, then knewn
a5 Torman Magurk. This reorganisation lod to increasing conformity in the acts of wership and
regular dispensing of the sacraments.

This reform came ai the expense of the Friaries whose influence was now well on the wane. They
4id not give up casily however and the row between the Franciscans and the Dominicans over the
riaht o beg for alms in certaln arcas led indirectly to the ultimate exceution and death of
Archbishop Oliver Plunkett, The authorities used the in-fighting in the Catholic Church to their
advantage and. in fact, one of the main withesses against the Archbishop was a Franciscan priest,
Edmund Murphy, who coneocied the evidence the goverment needed to seal the Archbishops
fate, He was hanged, drawn and quartered at Tyburn in 1681



The Penal Days

“The death of Archbishop Ofiver Plunkets was shortly followed by the accession of a Catholie
King, Jumes L1 1o the thrane of England. This brought same temporary relief 1o the Catholic
Chureh but his reign was so shori lived that there was no time to replace the Altar Glenin
AckindulTwith a Church, By 1690 be had been defeated st the Battle of the Boyne and English
rule in Treland was complete. The outcome of these ever s had dire consequences for the

C: lie Church in Ireland including the residents of Ackinduff. The Penal Laws were
reintroduced with renewed vigour and the Altar Glea continued o provice the anly place of
worship in the Parish apart from a penal altar site in Reaskmore

The allar site in Reaskmore has been deseribed as a small. remote place, concealed by bushes,
where Mass was colcbrated in Penal days. The site of this alter Is ina feld. now owned by Tony
Burns, in Reaskmore, Litile is known of its history but it is referred to on. official surveys of the
ares in the penal days. A historical reference has also heen made of a Mass Rack or Garden in
Fidenfore but this has beea difficult to substantiate. Mention hus also been made of a Mass Rock
s the townland of Killeeshil in Carson’s Glen. Tt is unlikely that both the site and the Altar Glen
were in use at the same time, as they are located so clase 10 each other. It is, perhaps, more ikely
that a Mass Rock ot Garden would have beei in usc in the more western reaches of the parish as,
without transport, the journey to the Altar Gien from Ballynaghey (Balyahaye) or Bockets on
faot would have been difficult, to say the Jeast.

I we accept that there were three Mass siles in the moden parish at this time, then it is perhpas
ap indicat

ation of the huge growth in popslation from the early 1700°s onwards. Communities
Lecame more seitled and demand for fand increased. The only option open ta those who
eanted to start out  family on their owi wes o move in greater numbers to the upland arcas of
Killeeshil. Galbally and Cranlome. Life had become more difficult for the peasant farmers
weavers. Measures were introduced to prevent candidates for the Priesthood being trained
abruad. Attempts were made to expel members of religios orders and the regylar clergy ffom
the country. Although never fully introduced. it layed the attltude of the goverment at the
iime towards the clergy a it was clear to them that their layalties still lay with the exiled King
James.

By 1698 only 3 Bishops rensined, illegally, to minister to their flocks. Over 400 Priests were
departed from the country. Proposals to have Catholic children raised es Profestants were
rejected by the goverment in Londan, as was the proposal of the Lrish parfiament that any priest
canght in the country should b branded on the face with the letier P. This punishment was then
amended by the Irish Privy Council to that of castration. This was also rejected in London but
“The Act to Prevent the Further Growth of Popery” of 1704 was very comprehensive and the
1ost notorous of all the Penal Laws. 1ts provisions included that the only prefession that
Catholics could enter was that of medicing and they could not inharit property. In addition. they
could not marry a protestant nor, in law, could one become the guardian of minors and by 1727
all Catholics were deprived of the vote. All priests were obliged to register their name, address,
age, parish and the date and place of their ardination and the name of the ordaining Bishop.
Those who defied these regulations were ordered to leave the country. An inducement to the




clergy to convert to the established church, Church of Ireland. was offered to any priest in the
form of a pension of £20.00 per year and a further regulation was introduced that no priest could
keep a curate.

S0, a5 we can see, s e new ceniury davaed in 1700 the Parish Priest of Killesshil, Father
Bryan O"Lefurty did not look farward very optimistically to the decades ahead. The constraints
of the Penal Laws had more affect in Ulster than elsewhere in Ireland due 1o the overwhelming
influence of the Church of Treland and its members in the locality and therefore the laws were
used more vigorously against the Catholic Church, The numbers of priests decreased dramatically
and places of worship were fow, Life was hard for the clergy aud people alike of the parish of
Killeeshil but that did not deter them from practising their faith in their simple bur sincere ways.

The increasing restrictions on the clergy became such that priests began to veil their faces while
saying Mass so that they would not be known to their congregation. The need for secrecy and
discretion was such that betrayal to the anthorities was a constant threat to life itself. Priest
hunters and bex and Bishap reported the practice of
saying Mass at might with only the parents present as, in some cases, they could not trust their
own children not 1o betray them.

The toleration of Cathoticism diminished even further with the formation and upsurge of
arganisations such as the Peep O°Day Boys and, much lter, the Orange Order. Despite the
threats from these organisations there were still differences of opinion within the Catholic Church
between Bishops and clergy over the appointment of priests and ceclesiastical superiors. There
was open defance of the Bishops right Lo make clerical changes in the diocese and disputes
dragged on. sometimes for years.

By 1731 the goverment carried out a survey to find out the *number of Mass Houses and Popish
Chiapels, and the aumber of pricsts offciating in each, and also the number of reputed Friaries and
Nunneries and Popish schools’ in each parish, The survey revealed that there were only 7 Mass
Houses in the whole of the Ulster part of the Armagh diocese. However, despite all the trials and
teibulations there was great resilience displayed by the clergy and peaple who were determined to
hold onta their faith. The survey reported on the dismal state of the chureh in Ulster. Never
before, or prabably since. has the fortunes of the Catholic church been at such a lob ebb. This
dire situation wasn’t helped by the increasing sectarianism and animosity felt by Protestants who
would complain at the cheek of Catholics, whom they regarded on a par with negro slaves in
America. By 1741 Archbishop Bernard MacMahon of Armagh was forced into hiding from

the authorities. But, as the 1740's progressed and times got better economically, the Penal Laws
were relaxed or began ta be jgnored by the authoritiesand, The Catholic Church grew

in confidence. so much 5o, that by the 1750°s and 60's they contemplated the building of
churches.




Tullyallen’s First Chapel

A number of Mass houses were built which guaranteed mass at fixed times and. in many ways,
‘hecame the social centre of its time. Tn this respect, the parish of Killeeshil took the lead in the
area and in 1768 a new church was built in Tullyallen. It has since been taken down, stone by
stone, and rebuilt in its original form in the Ulsier Amercian Folk Park neer Omagh.

The local landlord was James, Earl of Charlemont wha wes in the courss of preparing his estate
for sale to the Burges family. On the 10th April 1770 a 31 year lease on the property was granted
to Charles McDonrell, “gent af Drumnnafern” by the Earl of Charlemont through his
representative and brother, the Hon. Francis Caulfield. It is worth noting that the charch in
Tullyallen was one of the first Catholic churches to be built in this part of Tyrone and was due, in
o small part, o the Tiberal views of the Earl of Charlemont who favoured Catholic Emancipation
- some 60 years before it was actually granted! The first parish priest o reside in the anmes to
the new Chapel was Fr. McCarron from Aghaloo. He was frieadly with a Mr Alex Ramsey, a
prosperous local tenant, who provided the corner of the field on which the Chapel was built, next
1o the old Omagh/Dungannon coach road.

A Refigious Census taken in 1766 by the Church of Ireland sutherities revealed that

there was a total of 273 families in the parish, of which 168 were noted as “Popish”, 24 we
Church of Ireland and 81 were Presbyterian and that Fr. McCarron resided in the arca as the
“Popish Priest”.

By 2 steange coincidenee the Church of Ireland built its first church in Killeeshil in Lhe same year
s the Catholic Church in Tullyallen - 1768, The site chosen was the old eeclesiastical centre of
Killeeshil parish, surrounded as it was by & graveyard, as it still remains today. This coincidence
beps the guestion as to whether there was a quid pro quo armangement between the Church of
Treland authorities, Fr. MeCarvon, Mr Alex Ramsey and, perhaps, the Earl of Charlemont,
whereby the Catholic Church was allowed to build in Tullyallen and the Church of Ireland to build
in Killeeshil om whot was previously Cathalic Church property. This arrangement. if it did «a
place, would probably have settled any outstanding grievance held by the Catholic Church.
One s also tempted to arrive at this cenclusion os Roman Cathalics continucd to be buried in the
cemetry of the then new Church of Ireland church for another 100 years. It would seem that this
burial facility to local Catholics may well have been pat of that arrangement.

Some of our parishoners today can identify direet ancestors who are buried in Killeeshil. Mr
Vincent MeCann’s great-grandfather, Owen McCann, died 19th March 1862, This illustrates that
‘peaple from Ballynshaye (Ballynahackey) used St. Paul’s Graveyard until the church in
Aughnagar was built

Despite the uptur in the churches fortunes the Catholic population had to endure intermittent

hangings, shootings, burnings and flaggings from gangs of wreckers. One of these gangs was

based locally in Castlecaulfield and they were often used by greedy landlords to move unwilling

tenants out of their homes and farms to make way for new tenants who were prepared to pay the
rent.



Tullyallen Church, as constructed in 1768,
(Illustration courtesy of Ulster American Folk Park)




Social History

Living conditions for the majoriy of the locals in and around Ackinduff would have been very
basic indead, Meat ar bread would rarely have been ineluded i their diet. The commen
foods were stir-ahout made from oatmesl. potatoes in thelr various forms and 2 meal called
“borety”” which was a mixture of aninal blood and oatmeal made into cakes and cooked over an
open fire. There were people in each lacality who specialised in blzeding cattle by opening a vein
i the animal’s neck and collecting the blood in  suitable dish. Naturally the anirals did not
flaurish very well In these circumstances.

Agpart from working the Jand the people of Killeeshil and surrounding areas would have
supplemented their income by growing flax 1o make Jinen. Dungannon was surrounded by

jleachgreens at this time. Most houses in the area had a woollen or linen loom and the income
from these aetivitics was used 10 pay the rent, Turl would have been cut on the horder
en Ackinduff end Cranlome. near to the O Neill farm where Martin and Famon 0"Neill and
families now reside. Entertaiment was provided by the people themselves in their own simple
homes and a drop of “mountain dew™, or as it was then known, Bheatha”, would often be
introduced 1o the proceedings, Such cvents would have included marriages. wakes, music
sessions or celidhe. The seanchai or storyteller was weleome in most houscs with his range of
stories on the subjects of ghosts, fairies and tales from long ago, handed down erally from
gencration to generation, In these times, the 1760°s the Irish Janguage was still used in everyday
conversation but this period would have marked the beginning of its demise.

Parochial Boundary Changes

Killeeshil parish was, of course, much bigger in those times then it is today. It wasn't until 1837
that the townlands of Clonavaddy, Altaglushan, Reclain, Dernaseer. Moohan, Derryalskea, Cross,
Galbally. Glenburrisk, Glenbeg, Gortindarragh, Gartnagaley, Kerrib, Sessi
Cracknaclia and Tomagh were transferred to the parish of Donaghmore.  The parish also
included the townlands of Almore, Camaghy, Lareylea and Shanmaghery which are now in the
parish of Pomeray. The map on page _ illustrates the size of the parish in the Jate 1700°s,

The last 4 decades of the 18th century were times of great ehange. Beonomic prosperity brought
better quality housing for those who could afford it. The rise in iternational rade. the War of
Independence in America and the French Revolution had their effects even in Killeeshil. The
presbyterian community in particular produced men of radical ideas wh were influcnced by these
greal world events. This radicalism led to the formation of the United Irish movement. Their
‘main convention of the period was held in nearby Dungannon in 1782 and one of the leading
lights locally in that movement was the Reetor of Clonanese Presbyterian church,

The Volunteer and United Irish arganisations found litrlc favour with the Catholic hierarchy and.
alier the doomed revolt of 1798, the Bishops urged their congregation’s support for the Act of
Union, How ironic that 200 years aga in Killocshil we had Presbyterians supporting [rish
independence and Catholic authorities in favour of political and ecanomic union with Great
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Britain. Tor the residents of Ackindufl and the surrounding townlands worship was still held in
the Altar Glen, though by this time under lesser threat rom official authorty. The 18th century
ended with the Catholic church’s fortunes nruch improved than that of the beginning of the
century.

A New Century Dawns

The turn of the century and the years preceding it marked an explosion in the population, duz
mainly 10 more effecient and organised Brming methods and crop eultivation, including fax for
Jinen production, vats and potatoes. The population of the parish. as recorded in the Religious
Census of 1766 and again 80 years later by the Irish Parliamentary Gazeteer. had trebled to 4985
people residing in 910 houses, It was recorded in the Gezeteer that “a Roman Catholic place of
meeting in the pen air Is atended by 750 and, in the Rewan Catholie parochial arrangemen,
i5 ymited to a similar place of mesting.* This reference o two open air sites means that there
must have been two popular places of worship, one being the Aliar Glen in Ackinduff and the
other must have been in the west of the parish. perhaps in Edenfore. After all the needs af the
peale in the caster end of the parish were catcred fiar by the new church in Tullyallen. Tn 1834
1he second cansus records the population in the parish of 4844, comprising 2890 Roman
Catholics, 1429 Presbyterians, 480 Church of Ireland and 45 other Proteslant dissenters.

“The quality of life for the Mass gocrs of the Altar Glen was gradually improving as were roads
and general communications, The main westerly route from Dungannon to Omagh and
Enniskillen passed throngh the parish via Cottons Comer, Tullyallen, Killymaddy, Farriter.
Killeoshil and omward to Ballygewley via Aghnahoe. Education was now being provided on &
wore regular basis, mostly at hedge schools and in the church in Tullyallen where the children
would use chalk and a slate to write upon. The standard of education varied enormously from
basic English and mathematics to the classics including Latin and Greek. 1 is belicved that the
ehurch in Tullyallen was used as a school during the week.

The arca entered a relatively peaceful era. punctuated by the accasional sectarian clash or faction
fight, often hicightened by the influence of drink. A relatively common practice of the fime was
the inheling of ether which could be purchased relatively cheaply in the towns and villages of East
Tyrone. It was the marijuana of the early 1800°s and produced a state of intoxication relatively
quickly after inhaiing. The preaple of the early 1800°s also got high!

At the end of the Napoleonic War in 1815, Ircland suffered from a significant economic
depression du to the downturn in demand for finen, meat and other agricultural products. This
recession would have hit the people of Ackinduff hard and an examination of the parish and ather
records shows an exodus of people from the area. 1t is not clear whether they emiarated or
maved to the growing city of Belfist o other expanding large towns. Close examination of the
parish tecords of the time also llustrate, even by todays standards, an extrodinary high number off
illegitimate hirths. Ecclesiastical reports of the time complain of the decline in moral standards
and general church attendance and even in the practice of the faith. This situation spurred the
church authorities inte action with much greater cmphasis placed en church teaching of doetsine



through the catechism. The behaviour of some priests provided a poor role model for their
congregation and again the church authorities lick to tak ion by having them demoted
or replaced. We should’nt judge them too harshly from this distance as life was hard and
unrelenting. The priest Isboured under a huge responsibility providing not only spiritual
assisiance but advice on legal, family and financial matters, He was usually the only educated
person in the area.

The Tullyallen Fight of 1824

The burgeoning popalation presented new problenis as competition for kund became niore intense
and sectarian, The locals iock great pride in their church in Tulyallen but this was not shated by
local Orange Order members in nearby Castlecaulfield. Matters eame to & head on the 12th July
1824 when the Costlecaulfield LOL decided to parade past the church from the direction of
Parkanaur vin Cottons Corner. On hearing of their plans the locals decided to take a stand and
prevent what they felt was the certain destruction of their church. According to Mr Crossley,

Tocal Magistrate and agent for Col. Verner, “About 1000 men were entrenched behind ditches.
cmsed with guns, pistols, swords, pitclfurks, scythes and bayonettes on top of poles fond) there
appeared 10 be a leader to every 30 or 40 men and a young man of respectable appearance
Seemed 1o heve command of the whole”.  According 1o local tradition when the Orangemen got
1o Cattons Coreer they ran towards Carnteel in fear of the large crowd of armed men, Mr
Crossley acted as an intermediary between the Catholies and the Orangemen and promised Fr.
Goodwia. curate in the parish at the time, that the Orangesen would not puss the church. The
crown dispersed except for about 100 locals and then Mr Crossley lcd the Orangemen past the
church end a half hearted scuffle took place. Both sides claimed victory: the Orangemen having
‘marched past the church and the locals having saved it from destruction, The event is
commemorated in & poem called “Tullyalien Fight 1824,

The Altar Glen

Another poem entitied “Midnight Mass in the Altar Glen” was composed and dictated by & local
wha was seriously ill in St John's Nursing Home, Belfast, The poem describes the scene in
Christmas of 1829, the year of Catholic Emancipation. Tt has been described by elderly people
aver 50 years ago & 4 pood pioture of the glen when it was used for Mass and was fully wooded-

Widmight Mass in that hallowed glen;

An gltar stood nigh that uneasy brook.
Like a fairy palace with candles gleaming
Through terraced raws of oak and beech,
The bervied holly a background making,
By nature sprayed with Yulefide snow,
Like bridal curls from expanding branched
In wavelets fell the mistletoe.



The skies seemed rested on majestic maples
That rose like pillars in St. Peter’s. Rome:

And isled the valley, a transept muaking,

And twinkling stars light ihe leafy dome.
Kneeling peasants on the verdant carpet
Swayed in prayer and heir faces shone

Like shepherds waiching their Saviour's coming
With eves of faith on the altar stone.

The “Adora Te" nights” stillness wakened
In rolling cadence through that lane dell;
And phantom figures ouilined in darkness
Bowed in prayer at the Sanctus bell

With Chrismed hands the Host uplified,
The Babe of old was stabled thers;

And from benk and brook in rustic sefting,
Guardian angels joinad men in prayer.

The night is past, the clouds are lificd;
Deserted now is that sacred shed.

The trees are felied and the thrush is missing
Our faithful fathers all are dead;

But we their children still revere it,

The glen of the green and trampled sod.
That served of yore as Church and Altar,
For mass and praises raiscd to God.

The Great Famine

“The idylic scene painted by the author did not speak of the increasing misery of many of the
tenant furmers, farm lehourers and their famifies. The tradition of sub-division of already small
holdings, a rapidly expanding population’s over reliance on the potato, an uninferested
government in the plight of the poar were the ingredieats of a disaster waiting (o happen. And it
did. 1t happened everywhere, In September 1845 a Donaghmore farmer reported how his erop of
potataes were alnast wiped dut by blight, For the following three years the Great Famine
descended like a plague over the whole island. AckidnfT and Killeeshil were effected just like
every other arca. The options for the poor werc stark - emigrate ot die.

A programme of road-building and public works offered some income to the poar and bungey but
it was too little too late, The effects were devastating, Disease, fever, dyssentry, tubercolosis -
they all took their toll. The combination of death and emigration reduced the Catholic population
of the parish to some 400 families by the 1860's and a further decline accurred as the century
progressed, mainly through emigeation.



“Throughout these dark days the Altar Glen continued w be used for worship. This same period
witnessed a renesval in the Catholic Church’s determination to reorganise and strengthen its
influence et the expense of the religious orders and to get its bouse in order. Aschbishop Paul
Cullen was appointed to the diocese in 1850 and he sct about his work wilh missionary zeal and

ination. Clerical i d and a new code of discipline was introduced.
Emphasis was placed on education. temperance and devotion bath in the Church and in the home.
The growth in schools produced more candidates for the priesthood and by the latier halfof the
century the Church became the dominent influence in ordinary poples lives.

New Church in Ackinduff

Local tradition speaks of the sengity of the Altar Glen being abused, presumably by local thugs
but by the middle of the 19th century plans were afool to build a ew church in the townland.
Eventually afier much discussion the Parish Priest, Fr, Hugh McCrystal negotiated a site from the
Goughs, the local landlord. This site was said 1o be half way between St. Paul's Church in
Killeeshil and S1. Joeseph's Church in Ackinduff which rmust have meant that it was close to
where Malachy and Leo Holland and familics now reside. Stones were transported 10 the site but
building plans were hahied on objections from the local Church of Lrelend minister who,
apparently felt that the site was Lo close 1o St. Paul’s church. This version af events is based on
arél teadition and has not been checked or substantiated by local historians.

However pressure wos maunting from Armagh to bave & church built in the area. Lacal feelings
i the Western end of the parish were that a suitable site near Hoppers Bridge would be sultable
but a site could not be negotiated there. Fr. James MeCrystal, the new Parish Priest selected the
site in Ackindoff where St. Joeseph's Church now stands and the foundation stone was Jed on the
second Friday of Noveniber 1861, By coincedence it was alss the ‘fair’ day in Rallygawley. The
Cliapel was conpleted in 1862 and the belfiy tower was added at the beginning of the 20th
century, around 1903, This merked the end of the regular use of the Ahar Glen as a place of
wership.

Aughnagar gets a new Church

The decision to site the new church in Ackinduif caused anger and consternation in the townlands
of Aughnagar, Cranlome, Ballynahay and Bockets. A conunittee was farmed was chaired by Dr.
Simon Donzelly of Aughnagar and included James ©'Brien, Morgan Q" Brien, Owen Murphy,
John (The Burn/Mulgrew, Bernard ONeill, Francis Donelly s Ned Conlan. They quickly
decided, with the assistance of the residents of Altaglushan, Tulnavern and Legaroe, townlands of
Donaghmore and Aghalag parishes respectively, to build a new Church in Aughnagar. The local
Jandlord was a Dr. Kemnedy a Presbyterian minister from Stewaristown who willingly gave the
site, proclaiming 1 will not refuse my good tenants a place 1o warship their God™. Men from the
4 townlands of the parish set about building the Church and, it is said, a local youth called
Terence MoFlguan carried the first stone in a bag as he did not have a horse and cart. John
Mulgrew supervised the works and, apparently, when the workmanship did not come up to




standard, he kicked down the offending wall. The total costs for the whole structure was about
£100. As much of the work incleding the making of the doors and windows. the ironwork and
other tasks were carried voluntarily by Tocals

Fr. McCrystal was not exactly popular in Aughnagar and he knew it. Local feelings ran high
when it was reparted that he had remarked whik riding past, “that building will make a fine barn
for somebody when it is finished”. His popularity decressed even further when it was revealed
that he had taken possession of a Chalis and Missal to AckindulT Chapel, donated from America
by @ man called Tierney who wes originally from Bockets. The row was on and Fr. McCrystal
allegedily told Dr, Donnelly's committee “16 keep their sactilegious hands off them” or, “to keep
their unholy hands off then”. The chalis and missal were lost ta Aughnagar Church and the
whole unfortunate eplsode left a well of resentment and ill feelings which took generations to
lessen. Permlssion was given by the Archbishop of Armagh to have Mass said in the new Charch
by Fr. O"Brien. This was a cause of great rejoicing and the local bard revered the moment in
poctry.

“Our Church bell is ringing, the skylark is singing
while down from the heathiet in thousands they come;
And O"Brien at the Abtar, why boys should we filter
the fight it was long but the victory is won'”

T'he tone of this verse illustrates the deep feelings engendered by the whole dispute by the use of
the words fight and victory. In any case the people of the Western end of the parish pot what
they wanted and explains bow a relatively small parish ke Killeeshil ended up with 3 churches.

The Altar Glen Revisited

Many of our older generation, ineluding John Doran of Ackinduff, can relay interesting stories
about the Altar Glen. For example. a Peter Grimes was 3 Mass-server who responded in Latin on
behalf of the congrepation. This Tridentine form of the Mass would have been used in those days
and had been used until the reforms of Vatican I1. At that time the Altar itself was covered witha
thatels roof and a photograph of that still survives today. couriesy of Miss Marian Quinn of
Ackinduff.

After the building of the Churches in Ackinduff and Aughnagar the glen was used off and an for
the Church holiday of Corpus Christi, ususlly in May ot June. and a sung procession was held
from the Church in Ackinduff to the glen where Benediction was held and the procession duly
returned to the Church. This tradition continued until about 20 years sgo.

In 1954, Marian Year, the Assistant Curate of the parish, Fr. Patrick O"Brien from Caledon was
the main driving force behind the huilding of the stone Altar and walled surround. He travelled
with Barney Holland R.LP. (Chapel Barney) and Terry Kelly R.LE., both of Ackinduff, o
Downpatrick to inspect a similar Altar site, The stonework was carried out by Mr Peter
Cavanagh R.IP. of Aughlish. assisted by Pat Hamill R.LP. of Ackinduff. Other local men




involved in assisting on the project were John Doran, John Anthony MiBride RLP.. Edward
Holland R LP. and Johmy Holland RP. - all from Ackinduff.

1 1989 we were graced with the visit of Cardinal O'Fiaich. himself a noted historian, who regaled
e with staties o the harsh penal days and gave us an interesting insight 1o the problems of the
then Parish Priest Fr, Brian O'Leferty and of $t, Oliver Plunkett, Unfortunately his subsequent
o st vist o our parish for Confirmation in 1990 pre-dated his death by enly 10 days. A video
record of his serman in the Altar Glen was kept and distribuied around the parish at the time.

The visi of Casdinal O"Fiaich marked the ecclesiastical highlight of Killeeshil, a tribute from the
Archbishop af Armagh 0 the sacrifices and heroic efforts of all our ancestors throughout this
parish, The visit was organised by our own Parish Priest. FT. Tames Crowley, who has beea
Ciosely associated and involved with many major developments n the parish af Killeeshl during
His 16vear stay with us. He s the second longest sarving Parish Priest o record in the parish of
Killoesfil am ave look forward to having him with us for many years to came, When the fistory
of this parish is rewriten, perhaps 50 ar 100 years from now, his name villloain large a5  frue
ervant of his people and one who has pot prids hack in ourselves and in our parish

This brings us o his special weekend as we celebrate the Millenium, The new Altar before us
oday incorporates the Altar stone erected by Fr, 'Brien in 1954 and has been designed and
e o o meiebeate the millenium - 2000 years of Christanity. The Christian messape brought
o s by 1. atrick 1500 years g0 and, kept alive throuh trials and tribulatons is thnk God.
i a5 yelevant oday as i has ever been, In the last year this parish, through the guidance of our
Parioh Brinet, Br, James Crowey, has taken on the role of sponsor to the parish of Zaffe in the
Remublie of Berin in West Aftica. On the 28h July 2000 Se. Biazte Ekop of the Medical
Missionarics of Mary wrote to us, 2s follows;

Disar Friendls, we have hee able to do so muich because of your support and more than
generous contributions. Sr. Rose has shared with us her encounters with yor and how interested
o are tn our mission. The needs in the area ave many; stomen are Sill very mch second
s cicizorts with 1o volce T fhe activities of the village or even I the decisions taken abowt
them. Teenage pregnancies with associated dificuls detiveries are rampant, school drop.ous
(especially antong the girls) are on the increuse du o lack of funds, childivod wortaliry is high
o owsing facilities are im appaliing conditions, There i still alol fo do 1o bulld up the scope
of our sevvices and to improve the lof of the people we are begiming (0 koW and love”

as & final refection on where we are-and where we have come from liten, if you will 1o the
ords of s gentleman called Thormss Reid who on the 215t June 1822 having returned ffom
el teavelled from Brastry through Killeeshil parish to Ballygawley and compare it wih the
words of Sr. Elaets;

“Rode many mies today through Tyrone, northward by Ballygawiey and sav. nothing bui dirt
poverdy and wretchedness. The couniry abounds in hills, here ‘called mountain, covered with
heath and stvewed with miserable ovels, 1o cach of which are atiached a fbw yardy of badly
cudtivated grovnd, which only makes the barronness that preveils the more CORSPICHONS ..




Many of their hovels were constructed by placing long sticks in a slanting position against a
high hank and cavering them with scraws (sods); these were afterwards thatched with heath as
they did not project above the leve! of the heathy bank. they could not be easily discovered or
distinguished by a stranger until he came close upon them. The daars of these huis, if doors they
can be called, are formed by two perpendicular sticks and five cross ones, somewhat resembling
« gate of rude workmanship having the interstices filled with ropes made of siraw, worked in
gfter the manner of a basket...........

As far as I can collect from private friends and other persans well acqualnted with the country,
the number of children in a cabin is seldom less than four. and that it would average about five
which, with the parents, would give at least seven to every cattage or house ..... T have imvirably
found ihe increase of children in lreland to be in an fnverse porpation to the means possessed by
their parenis to support them”,

History teaches us many lessons; it ofien repeats itself. If it has taught us anything then it is to
learn from the past and to nat live in it Bitterness and feelings of resentment belang in the past
and there they should stay. We must judge all the people and all the partics in ihe times that they
lived in and not by the standards of today, Wemust not judge harshly but ratker, wisely, 1fwe
0. the future is ours.

Editors Note:

1 hope you hiave enjoyed this summarised version of the history of our parish and, in particular,
The Altar Glen. Tt is written as a history of the Catholic parish of Killeeshil. Tt is not a general
history of the area which, if we summon the energy, can be carried out by the formation of a
Historical Saciety.
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ENGLISH

Cunningham

Daly

Devlin

Devine

Danselly

Dorcan

Doyle

APPENDIX 2

IRISH

) Cuinneagéin

& Dalaigh

© Doibhilin

O Daimhin

© Donnghail:

0O Deordin

O Dubhghaill

EXPLANATION

The Tyrone family of this common name i
actually Conaghan () Connagain) but was
anglicised to Cunningham e it sounded
similar.

Originated in Co. Westmeath. The funily
were knowin a5 hereditary poets and were
closely associated with literature, Was
originally anglicised as Dawley, which is how
it sounds in [rish. Ballygawley owes its
‘name to this family meaning house of the
Dalys.

Anold Tyrane family. descended from Nil
of the Nine Hostages. Close kin of the
Donnellys and were hereditary sword
bearers to the O"Neill and part of his cavalry.

A leading Fermanagh family until the 15th
century. closely associated with the founders
of the village of Clogher, its original lrish
name being Clochar MacnDaimhin.

Alsa an old Tyrone family. & sub-sept of the
O Neill clan who gave their name to
Raliydonnelly, now Castlecaulfield, The
Donnelly chiel was traditionally marshall of
O"Neill’s army and were famous in
‘pre-plantation times a5 soldiers.

Otiginated in Co’s Down and Armagh,
particalerly around Dromara, Name ia Irish
means an “exled person’.

The woed Dubhghuill in Irish means dark
foreigner and was used to deseribe Vikings
or Norsemen. Could also be pssociated with
MeDowells wha were galloglsses
(mercenary soldicrs) from the Hebridies.
Scottish form is McDougal or simply
Dougal.




ENGLISH

Fox

Gillen

Gormley

Hamill

Hegarty

Holland

Hughes

APPENDIX 2

IRISH

O Sionnaigh

0O Goilldin

O Goirmleadhaigh

O hAghmaill

€ hiigceartaigh

@ haotiin

O hAodha

EXPLANATION

Means son of the fox and was sometimes
anglicised 2s Me/tinney. Has been
associated with the Seuth Tyrone area for
eenturies,

A sub-fumily of the ©"Neills the Goilla part
of the name means “lad or young man.
Long associated with the old Gaelic territory
oI CinéalEoghain.

Descends from Niall of the Nine Tlostages
and were found mainly in Mid-Tyrone.
Sometimes anglicised as Grimley, Gorman or
Grimes.

Another family descended from Niall of the
Nine Hostages. Family ruled territory in
South Tyrone and from 12th century were
known 28 poets and learned men. Has also
been anglicised as Hamilion.

Sept of Cindal Eoghain under the " Neills
and were based in South Derry area, known
in Gaelic times us Loughinsholin.

Anglicised to Holland in Tyrone. Monaghan
and Galway. Hylnd nsten and
Holohan elsewhere. Taliest teference in this

was a William Meaulin wha was
claded in a list of periti

mentioned on one of his las
= parish ofa Fr. Holland from K
who was one of St. Oliver Plunkett’s ¢!

Means descendant of Hugh and was
Sometiimes anglicised as MeTlugh. Name is
commmon in Armagh and Monaghan where it
was sometimes anglicised as Focy



ENGLISH

Kelly

Loughran

MeBride

MeCaul

MeCann

MeCaughey

McDonald

MeKenna

APPENDIX 2

IRISH

© Ceallaigh

O Luschriin

MacGaoillaBhrigde

MacCathmbaoil

MacCanna

MacEeachaidh

MacDhombnaill

MacCainaith

EXPLANATION

There may be as many as 10 different septs
of the name as it is common throughout
Irelend, The local sept are thought 1o have
originated in Loughinsholin, South Derry,
Means deseendant of Ceallach.

Cams to Tyeone about 1430 from Armagh,
Family famous for close association with
Franciscans and many priests of this name
were comman in O'Neill era.

Gaelic name meaning son of the devotee of
St. Brigid. Originated in Co. Donegal and
were important ecclesiastical family in
Medieval times.

“This oid Tyrone family was sometimes
anglicised as Campbell or McCawell, the
latter sounding similar to the original Gaelic
pronunciation. Common in East Tyrone as
Campbell

Originated in Armagh and hes long been
associated with the southern shores of
Lough Neagh, where the family were Lords
of Clanbrassil.

Also anglicised as Haughey and Hackett, the
iy is exclusive to Ulster. but mainly

Tyrone.

Most of the local families derive from
Sombairle (Soricy) MacDonald's faniily who
were famous galloglasses for the O"Neills.
Sentled at Knocknacloy (Dernanaught) and
rendered their services to O'Neill. Also
angliised as MeDonnell and MeGonnell

The family is closely associated with North
Monaghan, the Truagh area in particular.
Dispossessed in 1606 by the Plantation.
because they refused to pay ent.



ENGLISH

McMullan

MeGes

Mallon

Nugent

O'Hagan and

Hagan

O Neill

Owens

APPENDIX 2 v

IRISH

MacMhaoldin

MacAoidh

0 Mealldin

MacUinseann or
MacGoilla Seandin

O hAgdin

Ui Nl

MacEoghain

EXPLANATION

Said to originate from counties Antrim and
Down but mainly the former and previous to
that from Scotland.

Means son of Hugh and is found in most
Ulster counties. May have originated in East
Antrim - hence Islandmagee or alternatively
as a sept from Tir Connail (Donegal).
Derived from the ancient Irish word Meall’
meaning pleasant. this family originated from
North Tyrane and South Derry. With the
Mulhollands the Mallons were joint keepers
of $t. Parrick’s Bell and were prominent in
the O'Neill era.

‘The first Irish name is the commonly
accepted form but the second is a Tyrone
name which was anglicised to Nugent or
GilshenemLor Gilsenan, meaning ‘son of the
devotee of St. Senan’

Originally based near Tullyhogue the
family were hereditary brehons o the
O"Meills and inaugurated the O"Neill as King
of Ulster. Powerful family before the
Plantation who lost everything after Kinsale

Descendant from Niall of the Nine Hostages
this powerful family were all powerfil in
Ulster except for the O Donnels of Tir
Connail. Several sub septs of the family in
Antrim and Armagh. The most pawerful of
all the O Neill's fled Ireland in 1607 and with
them the last vestige of Gaelic power in
Ireland.

Anglicised as Owens, McKeown, Hoynes,
Hymes, Hinds and Owenson, the family
ariginate in Formenagh, an ecclesiastical
family essociated with the Maguires



ENGLISH

Quinn

Rafferty

Reilly

Small

Editors Note:

Source:

APPENDIX 2
IRISH EXPLANATION
 Cofmne The single mast common family name in

Tyrone, they descerd from Niall of the Nine
Hostages. Acted as quartermasters in charge
af supplies for the O°Neills in bath war and
peaceful times, Was locally pronounsed
“Queen’, reflesting its Gaelic pronunication.

& Raithbheartaighi  Meaning “wealder of prosperity”, it is
thought they ariginated in Sligo and Donegal
and is one of the most common family names
in Tyrone

0 Raghallaigh Were once the ruling family in the Kingdom
of Breffni (Cavan) and were heavily involed
in teade. s0 much so that Irish money was
known as reflly. Their wealth gave rise to
the phrase ‘the life of Reilly”,

O Caoilte Meaning small. slender or
anglicised for its literal meaning rather than
how it sounded. -Sometimes anglicised as
Kielty.

T apologise if your family nam is not included but the pressures of
time and space mean that this is the best attempt - for now.

The Book of Ulster Surnames by Robert Bell



APPENDIX 5

The Glens of Ackinduff

In days pone by, our fithful men, with courage hrave enough.
Assemhled in the lonesome glens, that li in Ackinduff
From the virtues of those noble men, wha joired of one accord,
To build an altar in The Glen, where God might be adored.

A saerifioe most sublime, that gives to God such praise,
By British laws was deemed a crime, in those dark and penal days.
Despire thase laws, no Sunday was let pass,
But the people met within The Glen to hear the Holy hMass.

A priest with pale and worn face, for youthful ones were scarce,
Disguised would travel to The Glen to offer Holy Mass.

“T'he watchers on the wooded slopes kept crouched with amxious fear,
To warn the priest and fathful flock if soldiers would come near.
The soldicrs were cormissioned round, cach priest and flock to chase,
But strange to say, they never found that lone and sacred place.

Thank God those days are past, but let’s not forget the trials men went through,
For hence that sweel, beloved spot should be remembered too,
Some memorial should be erected, however rude and rough,
“T'o mark the place where God was praised so long in Ackinduff.
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APPENDIX 6

TOWNLAND NAMES IN THE PARISH OF

ENGLISH
Aghaginduff

Aghintober

Aghnagaar
Aghnahoe
Aughlish
Ballynahaye
Ballyward
Backets
Cabragh

Cloontyelevin

Cloontyfallon

Coolhill

Cranlome

Cullenfad

Cullenramer

KILLEESHIL

IRISH
Achadh Cinn Duibh

Achadh an Tobair

Achad h na g-orr
Achadh na h-Usighe
Each Laisc

Baile na b-Aithe
Bailc an Bhaird
Buacaide

Cabrach

Cluainte Sleibhin
Cluainte Clamhan

Cluainte Fallamhain
Cluainte Fallamh

Cul Coille

Crann Lom

Cullion Fada

Cullion. Ramhar

EXPLANATION
Fickd of the black head,

The field of the small spring
well.

Field of the ceanes or herons.
Field of the grave or cave.
Stable for horses.

Town of the lime kiln.

Wards town.

A round hill,

Bad, waste land.

Slevin's meadows or
Meadows of the hare grass.

Fallon’s meadaws or
Emply or bare meadows.

Back side of the wood. most
southern tewnland in parish.

Place of leafless or bare bushes.

Long strips of land cavered
swith holly.

Thick ar close holly wood.



ENGLISH

Cullentra

Dergenagh
Derryhoar
Dristernan &
Dretalt
Drumfad
Drumnafern
Edencrannon

Ennish

Farriter
Flasglasnagh
Gorey
Gortlenaghan
Killeeshil
Killylevin
Killymaddy
Killymoyle
Lisfearty

Lisgallon

Lurgacullion

APPENDIX 6
IRISH

Cullan t-Sratha

Dearganach
Doire Usr
Driosarnan &
Droichead Al
Druim Fada
Deuim pa Bhfearn
Eadan Crannain

Tnnis

Fearaniochtrach
Fas Glaiseach
Guaire

Gort Luineachan
Coiliiscal

Coill Ui Leibhin
Coill a Mhadeigh
Coill na Maoile
Liosfearta

Lios Gallain

Larg a chillinn

34

EXPLANATION

Hill back of valley along
riverside.

Red marsh ground,

New oak grove, not long
planted.

Blackthorn shrubbery.
Bridge of the steep glen side.

Long ridge,
Ridge of the alder trees.
Hill brow of the trees.

River meadow, smooth pasture
alang a river,

Low lying land.

Wilderness or streamilets.
Abounding in kg grass
Lenaghan’s field.

“The kawer wood / low church.
Levin's wood

Dog's wood.

Waood of the honless cow,
Fart of the graves.

Gallon’s Fort or Fort of
standing stones.

The long hill of the holly.



ENGLISH
Mullaghbane
Mullysilly

Mullyrodden

Mulnahunch
Reaskcor
Renskmore

Stakernagh

Terenew
Tullyallen

Tullyvanzon

Source:

APPENDIX 6

IRISH EXPLANATION

Mullagh Ban White sumiit.

Mullach Bfinigh Hill of the willows.

Mullach Rodain Summit of the little road or

Mulizch Rodan Sumamit of the ferruginous or
spa spring.

Mullach na h-Uinsinne Hilliop of the ash tree.

Ralsc Corr Marsh were cranes gather,

Raise Mar Big morass or swamp.

Stacan Acadh A place where stakes ar posts
were cut

Tir An Fheadha District of the woods.

Tulaigh Alainn Beaurifisl hill

Tul an Bheannain Summit of the litte peak.

Meaning of Townland Names in the Parish of Killeeshil ( Townland Names
of County Tyrone - Compiled by P. MeAleer, 1936)
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